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The 0l1ld Wakulla County Courthouse is a simple wood frame building,
square in plan and topped by a cross or intersecting gable roof of
metal sheeting. A large octagonal cupola with pointed roof and
louvered enclosure projects from the intersection of the roof gables.
The main facade has a five-bay regular fenestration composed of a
double door entry with transom flanked by two windows on either side.
The second Story repeats this fenestration with the main entry replaced
by a single window. The flanking windows on the first story have
been altered to contain a third window between the two. The first
story windows are two over two double-hung sash and the second story
windows are larger and composed of four over four double-hung sash.
Each opening in the facade is capped by an elaborately molded drip
cap. The building contains three similar facades with the fourth
side containing an irregular fenestration. Interior brick flues
pierce the gable ends on the east and the west. The gable ends have
molded bargeboards and cornice returns of identical pattern with a
single four over four double-hung sash.

The exterior fenestration reflects the interior plan of the
structure. The first floor is divided in half by a central hall
which runs east and west. On the north side are three rooms and
on the south are three rooms and the stair. The stair ascends to
the second story which is a single open hall. The interior is
finished in beaded ceiling boards and simple trim.

The original contract for the building was very explicit about
what was to be included in the construction:

The house to be built 40 feet square, with five rooms
below, a hall eight feet wide, with three rooms on one
side and two on the other side with a half hall eight
feet wide between them - an open room overhead and forty
feet square, well ventilated, two chimneys of good brick
with two fireplaces to each chimney - a sufficient number
of pillars of good brick - 12 feet between joints of first
story, ten feet between joints of upper story. Twenty
eight windows, twelve of them below and sixteen above.
Windows to be 3 feet by 6 feet 4 lights to the window.
Three double doors below with transoms over them. Good
doors to each room . . . the entrance stairs in upper
room to be nicely walled in with good door - 3 good
columns of pillars through center of upper room - for
support to roof to be covered with best pine or Cypress
shingles - the whole edifice to be constructed of best
heart pine with what is commonly called a hip roof.

Every room to be ceiled with good ceiling boards both
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walls and overhead ceiling boards to be four inches wide
(County Commission Minutes, December 19, 1892).

The original intent of the County Commission seems to have been
changed between the plan and the actual construction of the building.
In the first place the building is not covered with a hip roof but
with an intersecting gable roof. The plan does not mention the
cupola. The second story hall never contained columns in the center
for roof support. There were four chimneys and not two as specified.

The building remains nearly intact with the exception that a
toilet and lavatory were added to the interior. As stated above the
windows on the main facade were altered by the addition of a third
window on either side of the entrance to form triple window units.
The entrance on the west facade was enclosed with double two over
two double hung sash. A mullet weathervane was originally on top of
the cupola. It has since been removed. Two windows on the east
facade were removed and the openings were closed. The major change
in the status of the building is that it was moved from the center
of Crawfordville to a site not more than 500 feet to the southwest.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
The 0l1d Wakulla County Courthouse is a rare example of the very
functional and simple public buildings constructed in Florida during

~the

cour

atter part of the nineteenth century.
ouses in the state,

Of three existing wooden
this one is the least altered.

Many

counties did not hdave the finances or the need for large, elaborate
‘buildings and structures such as the-Wakulla County Courthouse served

the needs of the county residents.

house longer than most others in the state.

Minutes,
plans and specifications for the construction.
1893,

In fact it functioned as a court-

. The County Commission voted in 1892 to construct a wooden
courthouse according to their specifications (County Commission

December 19,

1892).

accepted by the commission on August 7,
to the lowest bidders, G. W. Tully and Thomas McGlynn (County

Commission Minutes, August 7,
August,

the seats whlch.cost $69.50 (County Commission Minutes, June 4,

town of Crawfordville.
which converge on the central point.

1894,

1893]).

In 1893, G. W. Tully was asked to submit
His plans were
and the contract awarded

The building was completed in
at a total cost of $3,739.44 (County Commission
Minutes, August 6, 1894).

J. E. Pigot was awarded the contract for

1894).

Local tradition suggests that the mid-point of the central hall
on the first floor served as the bench mark for all surveys in the
The point is indicated by mitered boards

Additional credence is added

to this tradition by the fact that the contractor, G. W. Tully, was

a surveyor.

tradition.

southwest of its original location.

However, there is no documentary evidence to support the

The building was moved in 1948 to a site approximately 500 feet

has not been radically altered as a result of the move.
importance of the structure as a representative of late nineteenth

century vernacular architecture was not reduced by the move.

The integrity of the structure
The visual

The

building was located in a central location in Crawfordville serving as

a focal point for the county both governmentally and socially.

The

fact that the building was moved a relatively short distance and
remains in close contact with the present courthouse means that its
pivotal character, while admittedly reduced to some extent, has been

maintained as much as could be expected.
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